The Limestone County Commission met in a regular meeting today, at 10:00 a.m. at the Clinton Street Courthouse Annex, 100 South Clinton Street, Athens, Alabama.

Present: Stanley Hill, Steve Turner, Jason Black, and Ben Harrison. Absent: None. Mark Yarbrough, Chairman presided.

The meeting began with the Pledge of Allegiance.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Stanley Hill to approve the minutes of July 16 & 30, 2018.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Jason Black to approve the following claims

7/12/18	Check # 49249	\$ 31,367.96
7/13/18	Check # 49250 – 49328	\$ 971,142.48
7/13/18	Check # 49329 – 49330	\$ 4,779.00
7/13/18	Check # 49331	\$ 827.50
7/19/18	Check # 49332 – 49497	\$ 18,201.21
7/20/18	Check # 49498 – 49569	\$ 528,027.38
7/27/18	Check # 49570 – 49657	\$1,471,417.57
7/31/18	Check # 49658 – 49659	<u>\$ 2,368.49</u>
	TOTAL	\$3,028,131.59

with detailed claims of the above being on file for review upon request to the County Administrator.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner, aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Stanley Hill and seconded by Jason Black to authorize the Chairman to execute the following resolution to change Commission meeting scheduled for Monday, August 20, 2018 to Friday, August 17, 2018.

RESOLUTION OF LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION

WHEREAS, Limestone County Commission holds its' regular scheduled Commission meetings on the first and third Monday's of each month; and

WHEREAS, said meetings are held at the Clinton Street Courthouse Annex at 10 a.m.,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Limestone County Commission to change the Commission meeting scheduled for Monday, August 20, 2018 to Friday, August 17, 2018.

ADOPTED on this 6th day of August 2018.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Stanley Hill, aye; Jason Black, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Stanley Hill and seconded by Steve Turner to authorize the Chairman to execute the following Agreement with Morell Engineering for Construction Engineering and Inspection Services – Project # STPOA-4217 to widen, resurface, traffic stripe and guardrail on Harvest Road from SR-251 to Love Branch Road.



AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION

AND

MORELL ENGINEERING, INC.

STATE OF ALABAMA

ACTING BY AND THROUGH

THE ALABAMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES STATEWIDE

AGREEMENT

EONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the State of Alabama, acting by and through its Alabama Department of Transportation, (ALDOT),

hereinafter referred to as the STATE, and Morell Engineering which is qualified to do business in the State of Alabama, and has its principal Alabama office at 711 East Hobbs Street, Athens, AL 35611, Party of the Second Part, hereinafter referred to as the CONSULTANT.

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has agreed and by these present does agree with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION for the consideration hereinafter mentioned to provide on-call construction engineering and inspection, materials sampling and testing and contract administration on a statewide basis for the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter stipulated, it is hereby agreed between the parties as follows:

The CONSULTANT shall meet the requirements for conformance with the Standards adopted by AASHTO and approved by the Secretary of Transportation in cooperation with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION and shall ascertain the written practices of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION prior to beginning any work on this project. All work required under this AGREEMENT will be performed in accordance with these standard practices and any special requirements hereinafter set forth. All work performed by the CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall be subject to the Review, Approval and Acceptance of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION and Federal Highway Administration, where applicable, before CONSULTANT will be paid for said work.

"As a part of obligations of the CONSULTANT to the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION under this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT does hereby certify that CONSULTANT has no financial or other interest in the outcome of project proposed under this AGREEMENT".

The CONSULTANT shall provide on-call construction engineering and inspection, materials sampling and testing and contract administration on a statewide basis for the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

This will be a specific rate of pay AGREEMENT for a two year period. The CONSULTANT shall provide services, personnel and equipment as required by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK

The CONSULTANT will perform construction engineering and inspection, materials sampling and testing and contract administration services on-call on a statewide basis for the LIMESTONE

COUNTY COMMISSION.

This will be a specific rate of pay AGREEMENT for a two year period. The CONSULTANT will provide services, personnel and equipment as required by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

The work to be performed by the CONSULTANT will be as follows:

SECTION 1 - CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING AND INSPECTION SERVICES

1.0 PURPOSE:

This statement of work describes and defines services which are required for construction engineering, inspection, materials sampling and testing and contract administration for construction projects selected by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

2.0 SCOPE:

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for all construction engineering and administrative functions as defined in this Scope of Work and referenced manuals and procedures. The CONSULTANT shall utilize effective control procedures to assure the construction of said project is performed in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and contract provisions for assigned project.

The CONSULTANT shall provide professional, technical and administrative personnel, meeting requirements of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION in appropriate numbers at proper times to ensure that responsibilities assigned under this AGREEMENT are effectively fulfilled. All services shall be performed in accordance with established standard procedures and practices of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. Prior to furnishing any services, the CONSULTANT shall be familiar with ALDOT procedures, standard and informal, and practices, standard and informal, for construction, engineering and contract administration used by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall endeavor to provide the CONSULTANT at least ten (10) calendar days advance notice of the execution date for each construction contract to allow sufficient time for the CONSULTANT to schedule its activities. In the event of emergency needs, for a short term basis (sickness, vacation, etc.), the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall provide the CONSULTANT two days advance notice in order for the CONSULTANT to furnish required personnel. The CONSULTANT shall maintain close coordination with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION and the Contractor to minimize rescheduling of the CONSULTANT'S activities due to construction delays or changes in scheduling of the Contractor's activities.

3.0 DEFINITIONS:

A. Transportation Director: The chief executive officer of ALDOT.

B. Chief Engineer: The individual appointed by the Transportation Director to administer technical phases of ALDOT.

C. Construction Bureau: The Bureau of ALDOT charged with administering ALDOT'S construction program.

D. State Construction Engineer: Administrative head of the Bureau of Construction of ALDOT.

E. Project Manager, CONSULTANT: Qualified individual who has been assigned as the onsite person in charge of a construction contract.

Project Manager, LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION: Qualified individual assigned by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION to manage Construction Engineering and Inspection contract formulated by this AGREEMENT and will be in responsible charge and direct control of project.

F. FHWA: The Federal Highway Administration of the United States Department of Transportation.

G. Construction Contract: Construction work let under separate contract(s) by ALDOT to contracting firm(s).

H. Contractor: Contracting firm or its designated representatives awarded contract(s) to do construction work.

I. Construction Contract Suspension: Cessation of construction activity on a construction contract.

J. Region/Area Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Region.

K. District Manager: Administrative head of one of ALDOT'S Districts.

L. State Bridge Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Bridge Bureau.

M. State Design Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Design Bureau.

N. Consultant: Consultant firm(s) retained by ALDOT to perform all construction engineering and administrative functions as defined in this AGREEMENT.

O. State Materials and Tests Engineer: Administrative head of ALDOT'S Materials and Tests Bureau.

P. Region/Area Materials and Tests Engineer: Employee designated by ALDOT to administer policies on materials sampling and testing in ALDOT'S Region.

Q. Consultant Design Engineer (when applicable): Consultant design engineer retained by ALDOT to design aforementioned project(s).

R. Region/Area Construction Engineer: Employee designated by ALDOT to administer policies and procedures of construction projects covered by this AGREEMENT in ALDOT'S Region.

S. Region/Area Consultant CE & I Engineer/Manager (when applicable): Employee of ALDOT designated by Region/Area Construction Engineer to be in charge of project(s) covered by this AGREEMENT.

T. Area County Transportation Engineer (when applicable): Employee of ALDOT that administers policies and procedures of city and county construction projects let by ALDOT. U. County Engineer: Administrative head of the County Engineering Department.

V. City Engineer: Administrative head of the Mayor's Office/City Engineering Department.

4.0 ITEMS TO BE FURNISHED BY THE LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION TO CONSULTANT:

A. The minimum Contract documents for each project shall be distributed to the CONSULTANT, via the Region/Area Engineer, by ALDOT'S Office Engineer subsequent to award of construction contract for each project as follows:

5 sets Construction Plans - Half scale

3 sets Construction Plans - Full size (1 set to be used in preparation of as built plans)

2 sets Standard Drawings

1 copy of Executed Contract

B. An adequate supply of all standard forms to be used in fulfilling technical services under this AGREEMENT, disposable type molds for casting concrete test cylinders, sample cartons, sample bags and other expendable-type testing supplies. The CONSULTANT may use computerized forms approved by ALDOT. Construction and

Materials Management Software including CAMMS, SiteManager, Stormwater Tracking System and Concrete Management System will be used for contract administration on designated projects.

C. When determined by the Region/Area Engineer, the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION will furnish and maintain a Project Office at a location. The office will include shall meet all local, state and federal building codes and requirements and shall contain the following:

1. A minimum 600 square feet heated and cooled office space.

2. Floor space shall be divided into one restroom, one central work room and three private offices.

- 3. Heating, air conditioning and lighting.
- 4. Water cooler service (not bottled water).
- 5. Hot and cold water service.

6. If the office is a trailer, tie downs capable of withstanding winds up to hurricane force and trailer underpinning.

- 7. Garbage and trash disposal service.
- 8. Grass and weed control.

9. Parking spaces for a minimum of five (5) vehicles; graded for drainage and suitably surfaced with an all weather access road.

10. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall provide janitorial service.

11. Restroom connections to an existing sanitary sewer, a chemical holding tank, or approved septic tank.

12. The minimum furniture shall be supplied as follows:

Per office – 1 desk, 3 chairs

Per work room – 1 plan table, 1 work table (drafting), 2 stools, 3 chairs, 1 water cooler dispenser, 1-4 drawer file cabinet, 10 feet of book shelving, 1 plan storage rack and appropriate fire extinguishers.

13. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall provide computers, typewriters, calculators, etc. for LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION personnel and one telephone for each office and work room. The CONSULTANT shall be required to provide computers, tablet computers, smart phones, calculators, etc. for their personnel if needed to perform duties. All computers, tablet computers and smart phones provided by the CONSULTANT shall comply with the requirements listed in Article 1, Section 1, Paragraph 5.B.13 of this AGREEMENT.

14. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall provide a facsimile machine and a copier for use by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION and consultant personnel. The CONSULTANT shall be allowed to furnish personal equipment for his own use at no cost to the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

15. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall provide testing equipment, photographic equipment, tapes, rulers, field books and other miscellaneous items necessary for satisfactory performance of work.

16. The CONSULTANT shall provide all surveying equipment and it must be the latest technical equipment such as electronic total stations, data collection, hand-held computers, automatic levels, hand-held two-way radios, electronic pipe and cable locators and complete safety equipment.

17. Routine items for operation of the office such as stamps, postal costs, utility service, etc., shall be supplied by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. 5.0 ITEMS FURNISHED BY THE CONSULTANT:

A. Document Compliance

The requirements outlined within printed documents listed below are a condition of this contract. The CONSULTANT shall obtain, without cost to LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, at least one copy of each document. One copy of each document shall be available at project office at all times. Compliance with these guides, manuals, procedures, and advisories shall be a requirement of this AGREEMENT.

1. All active Construction Information Memorandums issued, prior to or after execution of this AGREEMENT, by ALDOT'S State Construction Engineer. These procedures convey certain practices and procedures of ALDOT relating to construction supervision and administration of contracts. A copy of each Memorandum issued on or subsequent to execution of this AGREEMENT shall be furnished to the CONSULTANT in a timely manner by ALDOT'S Region/Area Construction Engineer. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website)

2. Guidelines for Operations issued by ALDOT. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website)

3. All Technical Advisories and Memorandums issued, prior to or after execution of this AGREEMENT, by ALDOT'S State Materials and Tests Engineer. The advisories convey certain practices and procedures of ALDOT relating to sampling and testing of materials used in construction projects. A copy of each advisory issued on or subsequent to execution of this AGREEMENT shall be furnished to the CONSULTANT in a timely manner by ALDOT'S Region/Area Materials and Tests Engineer. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website)

4. ALDOT'S Testing Manual as issued by ALDOT'S State Materials and Tests Engineer. This manual sets out test frequency of acceptance samples and tests, sampling point, sample size, sampling and test methods and appropriate report forms for materials to be incorporated into construction projects. This Manual also contains Bureau of Materials and Tests (ALDOT) procedures referenced in the Manual and/or specifications and BMT worksheets and test report forms. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website)

5. ALDOT'S Construction Manual. This manual describes in detail many of the procedures and practices of ALDOT relating to construction engineering and inspection.

(Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website)

6. À tabulation of required ALDOT'S technician certifications relating to construction engineering and inspection.

7. Applicable ALDOT Standard Specifications for Highway Construction with one copy for each of the CONSULTANT'S personnel.

8. The applicable Roadway and Traffic Design Standards.

9. The applicable Alabama Regulations for Control of Radiation Chapter 420-3-26 Radiation Control as issued by the State of Alabama Health Department.

10. ALDOT'S manual of Materials, Sources and Devices with Special Acceptance Requirements as issued by the State Materials and Tests Engineer. (Said manual is available on ALDOT'S website)

11. FHWA Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

12. One copy of the Radiological Safety Manual for use of Nuclear Moisture/Density and Asphalt Content Gauges as issued by ALDOT'S State Materials and Tests Engineer for each project on which there is a nuclear testing device.

13. The AASHTO Standard Specifications for Transportation Materials and Methods of Sampling and Testing.

14. Copies of all applicable ASTM Standards.

B. When requested by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, the CONSULTANT shall furnish and maintain a Project Office within project work limits, or other location approved by the Region/Area Engineer. The site of said office, size of office and accommodations shall have prior written approval by the Region/Area Engineer. The office shall meet all local, state and federal building codes and requirements and shall contain the following:

1. A minimum of 600 square feet heated and cooled office space.

2. Floor space shall be divided into two restrooms, one central office, and three private offices. One of the private offices, within same confines as the CONSULTANT, shall be suitably furnished and maintained as an office for use of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, if requested. This office space shall contain no less than 180 square feet. The minimum office

equipment to be provided by the CONSULTANT for the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION office shall consist of one desk and complimentary office chair; two conference room chairs; drawing table (4' x 6' minimum size); drafting stool; filing cabinets as needed and telephone service or as approved by the Region/Area Engineer.

3. Heating, air conditioning and lighting.

4. Water cooler service (not bottled water).

5. Hot and cold water service.

6. One (1) fire extinguisher (Minimum size 10# CO2) per 200 square feet of floor space.

7. If the office is a trailer, tie-downs capable of withstanding winds up to hurricane force. (See NOTE in 603.1(a) about tie down strap requirements).

8. Office trailer underpinning with materials approved by the Region/Area Engineer.

9. Garbage and trash disposal service.

10. Grass and weed control at office site to a maximum of three (3) inches in height by mowing for a distance of five (5) feet outside security fencing (if provided), or within boundaries as approved by the Region/Area Engineer.

11. The CONSULTANT shall provide janitorial service.

12. Parking spaces for a minimum of eight (8) vehicles, plus additional spaces for use by the CONSULTANT'S vehicles, graded for drainage and suitably surfaced, with an all weather access road.

13. Restroom connections to an existing sanitary sewer, a chemical holding tank, or approved septic tank.

14. The CONSULTANT shall have available, for use in the field office, a personal computer. The personal computer shall comply with at least current minimum ALDOT desktop hardware standards and shall contain a current ALDOT remote network interface device. Additionally, the computer shall be equipped with a printer conforming to current minimum ALDOT standards with 11x17 print capabilities. The said computer

shall include current ALDOT standard Microsoft Office configuration, as well as, current ALDOT production versions of Bentley software. All CADD files are required to be completely compatible with the Department's current production versions of Bentley software. In addition, the CONSULTANT shall have available tablet computers and/or smart phone for use in the field inspections and documentation, if required. The tablet computer and/or smart phone shall comply with at least current minimum ALDOT standards and have the access to the internet via an air card or Wi-Fi connection. Ownership and possession of such computers and smart phones shall remain at all times with the CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for requesting a password to access ALDOT'S computer network. The CONSULTANT shall also furnish such other shelter, storage and parking space as required by the Region/Area Engineer to effectively carry out the CONSULTANT'S responsibilities under this The CONSULTANT shall provide appropriate type of vehicles in AGREEMENT. numbers as approved by the Region/Area Engineer, to accommodate the CONSULTANT'S project personnel.

Furniture and office equipment, supplied by the CONSULTANT, shall consist of desks, chairs, drafting tables, bookcases, file cabinets, calculators, facsimile machine, photo-copier, typewriters, telephones and other items determined by the Region/Area Engineer to be necessary in order to fulfill work under this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall provide all survey equipment, photographic equipment, tapes, rulers, field books and any other items necessary for satisfactory performance of work. Quantity and quality of the items require the Region/Area Engineer's approval. Equipment shall be either U.S. Customary or metric as directed by the Region/Area Engineer.

Routine items for operation of the office, such as stamps, postal costs, custodial fees, utility service, etc., shall be supplied by the CONSULTANT.

6.0 LIAISON:

The CONSULTANT shall be fully responsible for fulfilling all functions assigned to it by this AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT'S activities and decisions relating to project(s) shall be subject to review by the Region/Area Engineer. The CONSULTANT shall coordination of all activities, correspondence, provide reports, and other communications related to its responsibilities under this AGREEMENT. No personnel shall be assigned until written notification by the Region/Area Engineer has been Construction engineering and inspection forces shall be required of the issued. CONSULTANT at all times when required by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. If construction contract is suspended, the CONSULTANT'S forces shall be adjusted at the direction of the Region/Area Engineer to correspond with type of suspension, either complete suspension or partial suspension.

7.0 COOPERATION AND PERFORMANCE OF THE CONSULTANT:

During the period of this AGREEMENT, the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall conduct reviews of various phases of the CONSULTANT'S operations, such as construction inspection, materials sampling and testing and administrative activities. Reviews shall be conducted to determine compliance with this AGREEMENT and sufficiency with which procedures are being effectively applied. These reviews are to assure that construction work and administrative activities are performed in reasonable conformity with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION policies, plans, specifications

and contract provisions. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall have complete access, at all times, to project site, project office, all project records and any other CONSULTANT items associated with said project or this

AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall cooperate and assist the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION representatives in conducting said reviews. When deficiencies are indicated in a review, immediate remedial action shall be implemented by the CONSULTANT in conformance with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION'S recommendations. LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION'S The remedial recommendations and the CONSULTANT'S actions are to be properly documented by the Region/Area Engineer. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for accuracy of its work and shall promptly implement policies and procedures reasonably necessary to prevent errors, omissions, or noncompliance with said contract terms. If the CONSULTANT'S services hereunder contain errors, omissions, or are not compliant with terms of said contract, the CONSULTANT, upon receipt of written notice of such defects from the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, shall correct such errors, omissions or noncompliance at its own expense. However, when the CONSULTANT is responsible for managing a project and where CONSULTANT errors, omissions or contractual lapses caused increased costs, delays, or other damages to the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, the Region/Area Engineer shall prepare a written evaluation of the costs, delays or damages and circumstances that caused the increased costs, delays or damages. A copy shall be sent to the CONSULTANT. Said costs shall be deducted from the monthly payment or retainage due to the CONSULTANT. Remedial action shall be required commensurate with the degree and nature of deficiencies cited. Additional compensation to the CONSULTANT shall not be allowed for remedial action taken to correct deficiencies by the CONSULTANT.

Federal Aid projects are subject to review by representatives of FHWA. Additional State personnel may make special reviews. The CONSULTANT shall fully cooperate with and assist in making such reviews.

8.0 REQUIREMENTS: A. <u>General</u>:

It shall be the responsibility of the CONSULTANT to provide services as necessary for contract administration to produce construction in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall advise the Region/Area Engineer and shall document any omissions, substitutions, defects, and deficiencies noted in the work of the Contractor and the corrective action taken. B. <u>Survey Control</u>:

The CONSULTANT may be requested to reestablish project survey controls. The CONSULTANT may be requested to provide project surveying to fulfill project requirements.

C. <u>Project Inspection</u>: The CONSULTANT shall provide services to monitor and document the Contractor's construction operations. The CONSULTANT shall test, inspect and document all construction material as required to assure quality of workmanship and materials are in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and other contract provisions. The CONSULTANT may be responsible for monitoring and approving asphalt production. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall monitor all other off-site activities and fabrication (including pre-stress production). The CONSULTANT shall keep detailed, accurate records of the Contractor's daily

operations and significant events that may affect the work. The standard procedures and practices of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION for inspections of construction projects are set out in the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION'S Construction Manual. The CONSULTANT shall have appropriate certifications for inspection of work being performed. The CONSULTANT shall in general, perform inspection services in accordance with these standard procedures and practices and other accepted practices as may be appropriate.

D. Testing:

The CONSULTANT shall perform sampling and testing of component materials and completed work items to the extent that will assure materials and workmanship incorporated in each project is in reasonable conformity with plans, specifications and contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall meet minimum sampling frequencies set out in the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION'S Testing Manual. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION reserves the right to require additional sampling and testing. The CONSULTANT shall be specifically responsible for securing job control samples and utilizing test results to determine acceptability of all materials and completed work items. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for verification of a certified test report as determined by the Bureau of Materials and Tests, DOT label, DOT stamp, etc., as appropriate. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for progress record sampling of reinforcing steel. The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall monitor the effectiveness of the CONSULTANT'S testing procedures through surveillance and obtaining testing progress record samples and final record samples. Progress record sampling and testing is necessary to verify job control sampling frequencies and test procedures are adequate. The CONSULTANT shall inform the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION S of schedules for sampling and testing as work progresses on each construction contract so sampling can be accomplished by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION at the proper time. Sampling and testing shall be as required by the aforementioned ALDOT Testing Manual or as modified by contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for transporting samples to be tested to the appropriate State laboratory. Any testing performed at a laboratory other than the State laboratory shall be handled in a separate AGREEMENT. The CONSULTANT shall perform all required and necessary surveillance, inspection and documentation of project hot-mix asphalt operations.

E. Management Engineering Services:

The CONSULTANT shall perform all management engineering services necessary to: assure proper coordination of activities of all parties involved in accomplishing completion of projects; maintain complete, accurate records of all activities and events relating to projects; properly document all significant changes to projects; provide interpretations of plans, specifications and contract provisions; make recommendations to the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION to resolve disputes that may arise in relation to construction contracts; and to maintain an adequate level of surveillance of the Contractor's activities. The CONSULTANT shall perform any other management engineering services normally assigned to a project that are required to fulfill the CONSULTANT'S responsibilities under this AGREEMENT. All recordation and documentation shall be in accordance with standard ALDOT procedures, formats and content. CONSULTANT services include, but are not limited to the following:

1. Attending and participating in a pre-construction conference for each project. Record significant information revealed and decisions made at conference and if requested by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, distribute copies of said minutes to appropriate parties. The CONSULTANT may be required to conduct the preconstruction conference.

2. Complete and maintain a full and accurate daily record of all activities and events relating to project. Record all work completed by the Contractor, including quantities of pay items in conformity with Final Estimates preparation procedures and specifications. The CONSULTANT shall immediately report to the Region/Area Engineer changes in pay items, project time or cost as soon as they become known to the CONSULTANT.

3. Complete and maintain Project Diaries and Inspector's Daily Reports as requested by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. Said diaries and reports shall be kept up-to-date on a daily basis.

4. Maintain a project log of all materials entering into work with proper indication of basis of acceptance for each shipment of material.

5. Maintain project records of all sampling and testing accomplished. Analyze such records to ascertain acceptability of materials and completed work items. The field reports shall be recorded in project records within three days. The CONSULTANT shall verify, certify and document work items requiring performance periods (curing period, operational period, etc.).

6. Prepare and submit monthly to the Region/Area Engineer a comprehensive tabulation of the quantity of each pay item satisfactorily completed that includes appropriate test reports and/or materials certifications or materials stored to date. Quantities shall be based on daily records and calculations. Calculations shall be properly recorded. The tabulations shall be used for preparation of the Monthly Progress Estimate.

7. Provide interpretations of plans, specifications and contract provisions. The CONSULTANT shall consult with the Region/Area Engineer when an interpretation involves complex issues or may have an impact on cost or quality of performing said work.

8. Field problems are difficulties encountered during construction through circumstance, which may or may not be under the control of the Contractor, requiring a degree of engineering evaluation and decision. Field problems might involve situations such as: out of place piling, out of tolerance work, out of specification materials, structural defects, accidental damage, underground obstructions, etc. These problems may have a significant impact upon the execution, progress, cost or quality of said project. Therefore, it is of paramount importance that problems be resolved expeditiously. The CONSULTANT shall ensure solutions are pursued and implemented as expeditiously as possible. Where a difficulty, problem, or defect of any nature is encountered during construction, the CONSULTANT shall assemble all relevant information to include any proposals from the Contractor. The CONSULTANT shall document and evaluate the same in a concise and orderly manner, by reviewing all information and circumstances. The CONSULTANT shall make recommendations to the Region/Area Engineer for the most expeditious course of action to minimize delays and costs while achieving a structurally acceptable result.

The Engineer of Record (Design Engineer) or State Construction Engineer, depending on the nature of proposal is responsible for structural engineering analysis of the Contractor's proposals, determining acceptability of proposals and meeting the requirements of said design. However, the CONSULTANT shall be responsible for ensuring that the Region/Area Engineer is provided with all relevant information and, in addition, shall appraise and make recommendations to the Region/Area Engineer of all project(s) related circumstances that may have an influence upon the solution. In particular, the CONSULTANT shall first utilize his own personnel and resources in order to assess the problem and its likely impacts on said project(s). By utilizing CONSULTANT personnel and resources, the CONSULTANT shall assess both technical and contractual implications upon said project(s) of any proposals presented by the Contractor. The CONSULTANT shall consider all likely impacts upon project(s) as regards to costs, delays, potential claims, contract administration, management, any justifiable financial adjustments (increases or decreases, including penalties) to be applied to Construction Contract, and feasibility of the Contractor successfully and expeditiously fulfilling his technical proposals. The CONSULTANT shall make these assessments in order to formulate his recommendations. The CONSULTANT shall then forward the said assessments and recommendations to the Region/Area Engineer, together with any proposals from the Contractor. The CONSULTANT shall be a liaison and cooperate with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION in resolution of any problems. Upon resolution and approval of technical solution, the CONSULTANT shall ensure all approved remedial measures are completed in a technically competent and satisfactory manner. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for any contract administration and management normally associated with implementing remedial measures. In situations where the CONSULTANT does not have direct responsibility for engineering inspection of the item that caused said problem, but where that item is now under his area of control, (example: defective precast components or fabricated steelwork made at a facility under engineering inspection of a different party and later delivered to site), the CONSULTANT shall formulate his assessment and recommendations and cooperate in resolving the problem.

In all situations, the CONSULTANT shall ensure all proposals, reviews, assessments, studies, recommendations and decisions are executed expeditiously in order to minimize any delays and costs.

9. The CONSULTANT shall analyze changes to plans, specifications or contract provisions and extra work that appear to be necessary to fulfill the intent of said contract. The CONSULTANT shall provide recommended changes to the

Region/Area Engineer for approval. Approval of the Region/Area Engineer must be obtained prior to initiating any change or extra work.

10. When a modification to the original contract for a project is required, due to a necessary change in character of work, the CONSULTANT, in conjunction with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION Project manager, shall negotiate prices with the Contractor and prepare and submit a recommendation to the Region/Area Engineer for approval. The Region/Area Engineer shall prepare the required SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT and obtain all required approvals.

11. In the case where the Contractor gives notice, either written or verbal, that certain work to be performed is beyond the scope of construction contract and intends

to claim additional compensation, the CONSULTANT shall maintain accurate documentation in accordance with project contract requirements, of the costs involved in such work.

12. In the case where the Contractor for a project submits a claim for additional

compensation, the CONSULTANT shall analyze submittal in conjunction with the Region/Area Construction Engineer. The CONSULTANT may be required to provide recommendation on validity and reasonableness of the requested additional compensation and/or contract time extension. The CONSULTANT shall maintain complete and accurate documentation of work involved in claims.

13. In the case where the Contractor for a project submits a request for an extension of allowable contract time, the CONSULTANT shall the analyze request and prepare a recommendation to the Region/Area Engineer covering accuracy of statements and actual effect of delaying factors on completion of controlling work items. The CONSULTANT shall make recommendations weekly, or at other times as necessary, to the Region/Area Engineer on all delays. This recommendation is needed to justify a time extension.

14. The CONSULTANT shall prepare and submit to the Region/Area Engineer a final estimate with documentation and one (1) set of record as-built plans for each contract. All changes made to plans, which involve the CONSULTANT, shall be signed and sealed by the CONSULTANT and the Region/Area Engineer. This task must be completed within a timely manner or in accordance with current ALDOT Standard Specifications from the earliest project acceptance date.

15. At request of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, the CONSULTANT shall assist appropriate LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION offices in preparing for hearings or litigation that may occur during the term of this AGREEMENT in connection with a project covered by this AGREEMENT.

16. The CONSULTANT shall monitor and document the Contractor's compliance with contract provisions in regard to payment of predetermined wage rates in accordance with State procedures. This includes sub-contractor compliance.

17. The CONSULTANT shall review and document the Contractor's compliance with contract requirements concerning Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative

Action; assist the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION'S Equal Employment Opportunity Specialist as requested; and, review and document D.B.E.

(Disadvantaged Business Enterprises) activities to insure compliance of contract goals.

18. The CONSULTANT shall review and document each construction project to the extent necessary to determine whether construction activities violate requirements of any permits. The Project Manager shall notify the Contractor, in writing, of any violations or potential violations and require his immediate resolution of said problem. Violations shall be reported to the Region/Area Engineer immediately.

19. Shop drawing/sample submittal and approvals shall be logged by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. Tracking shall include maintaining a log book of the status of each submittal as it progresses through review and approval. The CONSULTANT shall actively encourage all reviewers to accomplish reviews promptly.

20. The CONSULTANT shall assist the Contractor and utility companies in resolving conflicts so that any conflicting utilities are timely removed, adjusted or protected to

minimize delays to construction operations. Documentation shall be maintained in accordance with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION 'S procedures.

21. The Project Manager and the CONSULTANT for each particular project shall conduct meetings as required with respective Contractor, sub-contractor and/or utility companies to review plans, schedules, problems or other areas of concern. The results of these meetings shall be recorded in project diary.

22. The CONSULTANT may be required to conduct and document field reviews of maintenance of traffic operations after normal working hours, weekends and holidays. 23. The CONSULTANT may be required to respond to inquiries from various persons, i.e., public, media, property owners, local agencies, State agencies, Federal agencies, etc., and inform the Region/Area Engineer of these inquiries.

24. The CONSULTANT may be required to provide field construction activities in areas of design engineering, vertical and horizontal control, typical sections, cross-sections for monthly estimates and other engineering required to complete construction project.

9.0 PERSONNEL:

A. General Requirements:

The CONSULTANT shall provide a sufficient number of qualified personnel as directed by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION to effectively carry out its responsibilities under this AGREEMENT. B. <u>Personnel Qualifications</u>:

The CONSULTANT shall utilize only competent personnel who are qualified by experience and education. The CONSULTANT shall submit, in writing, to the Region/Area Engineer the name of all personnel to be considered for assignment to said construction projects, together with a detailed resume of each person's qualifications and copies of current certifications with respect to salary, education and experience. The CONSULTANT'S personnel approval request shall be submitted at least two weeks prior to and approved by the Region/Area Engineer prior to the date an individual is to report to work. Listed below are minimum qualifications and job descriptions for the CONSULTANT'S personnel that may be working on various projects under this

AGREEMENT.

PROJECT MANAGER:

Minimum Qualifications:

• Ten years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection or a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering or Registered Professional Engineer with five years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection. One or more of the following certifications may be required as approved by the Region/Area Engineer.

- Certified Asphalt Technician Level I Field Tester
- Certified Level II Quality Management Technician
- Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician
- Work Zone Safety Certification
- Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT certification)
- Radiological Safety Course Certification
- Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI)

Job Description:

This is administrative and technical work in Civil Engineering. The employees in said class shall act as the first contact between contractor and the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. The Project Manager shall be responsible for supervision of all employees assigned to the said project. The Project Manager shall ensure that a project is built in accordance with project plans and specifications under which contract was awarded. The Project Manager shall report directly to the District Manager's or the Region/Area Engineer's designated representative.

SENIOR INSPECTOR:

Minimum Qualifications:

• Eight years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection or a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering or Registered Professional Engineer with two years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection. One or more of the following certifications as necessary and approved by the Region/Area Engineer. Inspectors who are to perform a specific task shall be certified in said field.

- Inspectors who are to perform a specific task shall be certified in s
- Certified Asphalt Technician Level I Field Tester
- Certified Level II Quality Management Technician
- Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT Certification)
- Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician
- Work Zone Safety Certification
- Radiological Safety Course Certification
- Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI)

Job Description:

This is skilled sub-professional engineering work in the field or office. Employees in said class shall act as the Assistant Project Manager and be responsible for reviewing and directing inspection duties of all project inspectors. The Senior Inspector shall be capable of surveying and drafting, as they apply to documenting and inspection, of a construction project. The Senior Inspector shall report directly to Project Manager.

LEVEL II INSPECTOR:

Minimum Qualifications:

• Five years of experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection or a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering with one year of experience in construction inspection, surveying or materials testing and inspection. One or more of the following certifications as necessary and approved by the Region/Area Engineer. Inspectors who are to perform a specific task shall be certified in said field.

- Certified Asphalt Technician Level I Field Tester
- Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT Certification)
- Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician
- Work Zone Safety Certification
- Radiological Safety Course Certification
- Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI)

Job Description:

This is skilled sub-professional engineering work in the field or office. Employees in said class shall follow standard procedures in documenting construction projects and inspecting job activities to verify they are in compliance with project plans and specifications. The inspector shall be responsible for completing a daily report documenting labor and equipment used by contractor to include a description of work performed and any pertinent conversations with contractor. The inspector will assist with office work such as plotting cross-sections and computing earthwork quantities. The inspector shall report directly to Senior Inspector and/or Project Manager.

LEVEL I INSPECTOR:

Minimum Qualifications:

• Some experience in construction inspection, surveying or highway materials testing and inspection is preferred. One or more of the following certifications as necessary and approved by the Region/Area Engineer. Inspectors who are to perform a specific task shall be certified in that particular field.

- Certified Asphalt Technician Level I Field Tester
- Certified Concrete Technician (ACI and ALDOT Certification)
- Certified Asphalt Roadway Technician
- Work Zone Safety Certification
- Radiological Safety Course Certification

Job Description:

This is sub-professional engineering work in the field or office. Employees in said class shall follow standard procedures in documenting construction projects and inspecting job activities to verify they are in compliance with project plans and specifications. The inspector shall be responsible for completing a daily report documenting labor and equipment used by contractor to include a description of work performed and any pertinent conversations with contractor. The inspector shall assist with office work such as plotting cross-sections and computing earthwork quantities. The inspector shall report directly to Senior Inspector and/or Project Manager.

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT Minimum Qualifications:

• A high school diploma or a GED certificate.

Job Description:

Employees in this class may perform a variety of clerical duties. These duties may include data entry, filing documents, sorting mail, typing documents, taking dictation, proofreading documents, making copies, greeting and directing the public, taking telephone messages, posting records, or making simple calculations.

PROFESSIONAL CIVIL ENGINEER

Minimum Qualifications:

• Must possess a Professional Engineer's License as issued by the Alabama State Board of Licensure for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and must have at least one year of professional civil engineering experience.

• Qualified Credentialed Inspector (QCI) Job Description:

This is advanced professional work in the field of civil engineering. Employees in said class perform a variety of complex engineering duties associated with planning, geodetic surveys, location, design, construction or maintenance of roads, bridges, buildings, or other civil engineering projects.

TARGET PERSON

Minimum Qualifications:

• Six months experience in surveying.

Job Description:

This is sub-professional work in the field or office. Employees in said class follow standard procedures in carrying out field or office assignments related to surveying for construction projects. Limited instrument use for construction and right-of-way stakeout, obtaining quantity cross-sections, spot checking location and elevation of different construction activities such as form work, setting of girders, pipe grades and blue top elevations as well as cutting line constitute the main activities.

INSTRUMENT PERSON

Minimum Qualifications:

• Two years experience in surveying.

Job Description:

This is skilled sub-professional surveying work in the field or office. Employees in said class follow standard procedures in carrying out field or office assignments related to surveying for construction projects. Employees in said class may be in charge of checking of contractor's work, obtaining quantity cross-sections, and staking right-of-way. Said employee must be able to operate several types of surveying equipment. The ability to read/comprehend contract plans, take and reduce field notes and complete daily reports is essential. The position shall report directly to Field Supervisor or Project Manager.

FIELD SUPERVISOR

Minimum Qualifications:

• Four years experience in surveying with at least one year of experience as a construction survey party chief.

Job Description:

This is supervisory and technical surveying work in the field or office. Employees in said class are in charge of making daily work assignments, interpreting and reading construction plans, and directing surveying activities involved with checking contractor's work, obtaining quantity cross-sections, and staking right-of-way. Work is performed with considerable independence, but is reviewed for conformance with established policies, procedures, and applicable State laws. The ability to calculate horizontal and vertical positions as well as quantities for payment, communicate in writing and orally, and instruct personnel in the use of equipment is essential. Said position shall report directly to Project Manager or Professional Land Surveyor

PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR

Minimum Qualifications:

• Must possess a Professional Land Surveyor's License as issued by the Alabama State Board of Licensure for Professional Engineers and Land Surveyors and have at least one year of experience as a Professional Land Surveyor. Job Description:

This is supervisory professional surveying work in the field or office as required by Alabama State Law. Employees in said class shall insure compliance to standards of practice for surveying in the State of Alabama and conformance with established policies and procedures for surveys which involve the staking of right-of-way.

C. <u>STAFFING</u>:

The LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall determine number and type of personnel needed to adequately staff and carry out responsibilities of said scope of service. The qualifications of each person proposed for assignment must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Region/Area Engineer. An individual previously approved whose performance is later determined by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION to be unsatisfactory shall be immediately removed and replaced by the CONSULTANT within one week after notification. The CONSULTANT shall maintain an appropriate staff, as approved by the Region/Area Engineer, after completion of construction to complete the final estimate. Qualified personnel, thoroughly familiar with all aspects of construction and final measurements of various pay items, shall be available to resolve disputed final pay quantities until appropriate contract is finalized.

As the Contractor's operations on a contract diminish, the CONSULTANT shall reduce number of personnel assigned to said project as appropriate. Any adjustment of the CONSULTANT forces as directed by the Region/Area Engineer shall be accomplished within one week after notification. The CONSULTANT shall, at all times, provide project personnel to ensure proper staffing is maintained. Personnel on a specific project shall be rotated to keep overtime to a minimum. The Project Manager shall be responsible to schedule the CONSULTANT employee work hours to avoid overtime. This shall include varying employee work hours, or the use of shift work, or rescheduling employee normal work hours in advance of expected overtime. The method of schedule modification shall be approved by the Region/Area Engineer. If overtime is not held to a minimum, then SECTION 1, 7.0 (Cooperation and Performance of the CONSULTANT) of this AGREEMENT shall be enforced to replace personnel. If construction contract is suspended, the CONSULTANT'S forces shall be adjusted at the direction of the Region/Area Engineer to correspond with type of suspension. In the event of a construction contract suspension which requires the removal of CONSULTANT forces from project, the CONSULTANT shall be allowed up to a maximum of five (5) days to demobilize, relocate or terminate such forces.

Should the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION determine a need for additional classifications not set forth in this AGREEMENT, the classifications and hourly pay ranges shall be established based on mutual AGREEMENT with the CONSULTANT.

D. <u>CERTIFICATION - Licensing for Equipment and Personnel</u>:

The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for obtaining proper certification and licenses for equipment and personnel used on any project. Licensing of nuclear testing devices shall be obtained through the appropriate agencies. Only technicians approved by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall be authorized to operate nuclear testing devices. The CONSULTANT shall be responsible for monitoring activity (i.e. film badges/radiation levels) of their technicians who operate nuclear testing devices. Other certifications for technicians such as concrete, Asphalt Roadway, Asphalt Plant, American Traffic Safety Services Association (ATSSA) Worksite Supervisors and others if applicable shall be required. Construction Inspectors work qualifications shall be as shown in SECTION 1, Paragraph 9.0 B of this AGREEMENT. 10.0 SUBCONSULTANT SERVICES:

Upon written approval of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION and prior to performance of work, the CONSULTANT may subcontract for engineering surveys,

materials testing, or specialized professional services. The Region/Area Engineer shall verify qualifications of personnel used by sub-consultant.

11.0 OTHER SERVICES:

The CONSULTANT shall, upon written authorization by the Region/Area Engineer, perform any additional services not otherwise identified in this AGREEMENT as may be required by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION in connection with said Project(s).

12.0 CLAIMS REVIEW:

In the event the Contractor for said project submits a claim for additional compensation and/or time after the CONSULTANT shall, by written request from the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, analyze the claim, prepare recommendation to the Region/Area Engineer covering validity and reasonableness of charges and/or assist in negotiations leading to the settlement of said claim. Compensation for these services shall be mutually agreed between the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION and the CONSULTANT prior to performance of said Services.

A. The CONSULTANT shall, upon written request by Region/Area Engineer, assist appropriate LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION Offices in preparing for arbitration hearings or litigation that occur after the CONSULTANT'S contract time in connection with the project covered by this AGREEMENT.

The CONSULTANT shall, upon written request by Region/Area Engineer, provide qualified Engineers and/or Engineering Technicians to serve as engineering witnesses, provide exhibits, and otherwise assist the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION in any litigation or hearings in connection with said construction contract(s).

ARTICLE II - TIME OF BEGINNING AND COMPLETION

1. The CONSULTANT services for each on-call construction assignment shall begin after the

CONSULTANT receives approved Purchase of Consultant Services for Construction Engineering and Inspection order (Form CPO – CE&I) from Region/Area Engineer. The CPO shall constitute Notice to Proceed from the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION. The maximum amount payable to the CONSULTANT for services on each on-call construction assignment shall not exceed the amount stated on said CPO. The length of services as herein established for each construction contract is based on the CONSULTANT beginning work when notified and continuing work until acceptance by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION of described services.

2. This AGREEMENT shall be effective upon the date of approval by the Legislative Contract Review Oversight Committee, and signature of the Governor of Alabama, for a term of two years. Any requests for work by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION, made prior to the end of the two year term shall be covered by this AGREEMENT.

ARTICLE III – PAYMENT

SECTION 1

Overhead shall be limited to the actual audited overhead rates. Increases in billable overhead and labor additives shall be limited to a maximum of five (5) percentage points. Profit shall be maintained at ten (10) percent of these costs. When Region/Area requires the CONSULTANT to stay overnight at a project, the CONSULTANT shall be reimbursed for actual expenses up to the maximum allowable by State Law. Employees whose vehicles are used for work-related mileage (excluding mileage for commuting) shall be compensated at the prevailing Federal mileage rate as approved by the General Services Administration. Out of-pocket expenses, not to exceed \$100.00, shall be paid as direct cost plus ten (10) percent. Purchases over \$100.00 shall require written authorization from appropriate Region.

For performance by the CONSULTANT of services provided for in this AGREEMENT, and as full and complete compensation therefore, including all approved expenditures and expenses incurred by the CONSULTANT in connection with this AGREEMENT, and subject to conformity with all provisions of this AGREEMENT, the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION shall pay the CONSULTANT as follows:

A. The total compensation to the CONSULTANT for work provided for when performed under this AGREEMENT will be as follows:

1. Direct salary and wages – Actual salary and wages paid personnel while actually engaged in performance of work, all as determined by Finance Director of the Alabama Department of Transportation. Listed below are labor rate ranges for the CONSULTANT'S personnel that may be working on various projects under this AGREEMENT.

CLASSIFICATION	HOURLY PAY RANGES
Professional Civil Engineer	\$28.00 to \$43.00
Project Manager	\$21.00 to \$37.00
Senior Inspector	\$17.00 to \$29.00
Level II Inspector	\$13.00 to \$24.00
Level I Inspector	\$12.00 to \$19.00
Professional Land Surveyor	\$20.00 to \$37.00
Field Supervisor	\$17.00 to \$29.00
Instrument Person	\$13.00 to \$23.00
Target Person	\$12.00 to \$19.00
Administrative Assistant	\$10.00 to \$19.00

2. All other related direct actual costs paid by the CONSULTANT, applicable to this AGREEMENT, such as printing and reproduction, and subsistence of personnel engaged on project at rates payable under state law, and for those supplies, communication equipment, etc. not included in the overhead rate. Vehicles reimbursed for work-related mileage (excluding mileage for commuting) at the prevailing Federal mileage rate as approved by the General Services Administration, see Attachment #1 for ALDOT Consultant Field Office Procedures, which Attachment #1 is made a part hereof.

3. For work performed out of the CONSULTANT'S home or branch office, the CONSULTANT'S home office overhead and labor additive rate of 160.54 percent (for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016) shall be applied to direct salary and wages. Any sub-consultant's overhead and labor additive rate shall not exceed prime consultant's rate. The CONSULTANT'S billable overhead and labor additive can only

increase to a maximum of five (5) percentage points per year during the life of this AGREEMENT.

4. For work performed out of LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION provided facility, the CONSULTANT'S field office and labor additive rate of 110.31 percent (for Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2016) shall be applied to the direct salary and wages. Any sub-consultant's overhead and labor additive rate shall not exceed prime consultant's rate. The CONSULTANT'S billable overhead and labor additive can only increase to a maximum of five (5) percentage point per year during the life of this AGREEMENT.

(NOTE: For CONSULTANTS that have not provided an audited field office overhead rate, the billable field office rate shall be 105.00 percent until such time as one is provided to the STATE'S Bureau of Finance and Audits, External Audit Section.)

5. Profit at the rate of ten (10) percent applied to direct salary, overhead, and approved expenses.

6. The STATE'S Bureau of Finance and Audits, External Audit Section shall be furnished a Statement of Direct Labor, Fringe Benefits and General Overhead that is in compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and an audited Statement of Indirect Cost developed in compliance with the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures stated in Volume 1, Federal Acquisition Regulations, Part 31, and the audit standards contained in the Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States by the end of the fifth month after the closing of the CONSULTANT'S fiscal year.

7. Any paid overtime shall require prior authorization from the Region/Area Engineer. Billable overtime is all time worked over Forty Hours each week or holidays observed by the CONSULTANT.

For firms that include the premium portion of direct labor overtime in the Direct Labor Base of the Indirect Cost Rate Calculation:

a. The hourly overtime rate will be 1.5 times the billable rate.

b. Hours worked on holidays observed in the Region/Area on the work that is being performed by the CONSULTANT will be billable at an hourly rate of 2 times the regular billing rate.

For firms that do not include the premium portion of direct labor overtime in the Direct Labor Base of the Indirect Cost Rate Calculation:

a. The hourly rate will be one 1 times the billable rate.

b. The premium portion of overtime will be billed in accordance with the CONSULTANT'S Indirect Cost Rate Calculation.

8. The maximum amount payable, to the CONSULTANT for work provided for under this AGREEMENT, shall not exceed <u>Sixty Thousand Nine Hundred Forty One &</u> <u>35/dollars (\$60,941.35) (7.25% of CE&I).</u>

SECTION 2

A. Certified copies of daily payrolls for personnel actively engaged on work included in this specific Rate of Pay AGREEMENT shall be furnished monthly.

B. Payments to the CONSULTANT shall be made not more often than monthly. Payment shall be subject to submission by the CONSULTANT of such vouchers or invoices, daily progress reports and such evidence of performance the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION may deem necessary. The original invoice and (3) three copies shall be submitted by the CONSULTANT to the Region/Area Office for review, approval and forwarding to the STATE'S Bureau of Finance and Audits, External Audit Section located in Montgomery, Alabama, for payment.

C. The CONSULTANT shall correlate and coordinate accounting of CONSULTANT to comply with current audit system of the STATE and applicable Federal Acquisition Regulations. Since this is a cost reimbursable type of AGREEMENT, all direct job costs, and labor costs charged to the said project shall be the actual rate of pay at the time work is performed and shall be subjected to audit by the STATE.

SECTION 3

The acceptance by the CONSULTANT of the final payment shall constitute and operate as a release to the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION of all claims and of any and all liability of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION to the CONSULTANT, its representatives and/or assigns for all things done, furnished or relating to services rendered by the CONSULTANT under, or in connection with this AGREEMENT, or any part thereof, provided that no unpaid invoices exist because of extra work required at the request of the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

SECTION 4

During the period of this AGREEMENT, the CONSULTANT shall not be employed and CONSULTANT'S employees shall not be employed by construction contractors performing work on state or federal-aid projects on which the CONSULTANT is assigned without approval in writing by the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION.

SECTION 5

The work to be performed under this AGREEMENT shall not include any work payable to the CONSULTANT under any other AGREEMENT(S) with the LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION in effect at the time work is performed.

ARTICLE IV – MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Exhibits A, C, D, E, F, G, H, H-1, I, K, L, M, N, X, Y and Z attached hereto, are made a part of this AGREEMENT and the terms and provisions of such exhibits are binding on the parties respectively as fully and completely as they would bind the parties if such terms and provisions were set forth in writing in the AGREEMENT.

By signing this contract, the contracting parties affirm, for the duration of the AGREEMENT, that they will not violate federal immigration law or knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien within the State of Alabama. Furthermore, a contracting party found to be in violation of this provision shall be deemed in breach of the AGREEMENT and shall be responsible for all damages resulting there from.

In WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed by those officers, officials and persons thereunto duly authorized, and the AGREEMENT is deemed to be effective on the date of approval by the Legislative Contract Review Oversight Committee and the approval of the Governor of Alabama.

ATTEST:

MORELL ENGINEERING, INC

23

Ву:_____

(Affix Corporate Seal)

LIMESTONE COUNTY COMMISSION:

County Commission Chairman

Harvest Road / 30 Days	\$ 43.00	\$ 27.00	\$ 29.00	\$ 18.00	\$ 15.00	\$ 37.00	\$ 29.00	\$ 16.00	\$ 14.00	
	Prof. Civil Engineer	Project Manager	Senior Inspector	Level II Inspector	Level I Inspector	Prof. Land Surveyor	Field Supervisor	Instrument Person	Target Person	
Project # STPOA-4217										Total
Task Description										
Contract Administration	2	5								
Surveying								2	2	
Project Inspection		15	15	20	30		2			
Testing										
Management	3	20								
Man Day Total	5	40	15	20	30	0	2	2	2	
Daily Rate	\$ 344.00	\$ 216.00	\$ 232.00	\$ 144.00	\$ 120.00	\$296.00	\$232.00	\$128.00	\$112.00	
Total Direct labor	\$1,720.00	\$ 8,640.00	\$3,480.00	\$2,880.00	\$3,600.00	\$-	\$464.00	\$256.00	\$224.00	\$21,264.0
Overhead 160.54	\$2,761.29	\$13,870.66	\$5,586.79	\$4,623.55	\$5,779.44	\$-	\$744.91	\$410.98	\$359.61	\$34,137.2
Direct cost										\$ -
Sub Total										\$55,401.2
Profit 10%										\$ 5,540.1
TOTAL ESTIMATED										\$60,941.3

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; Jason Black, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Stanley Hill to approve a lease for the Sheriff's Department for a 2018 Chevrolet Silverado Pickup VIN # 1GC1KWEY4JF247746, annual rent of \$1.00.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Jason Black to authorize the Chairman to execute the following Agreement with the Mental Health Center of North Central Alabama, Inc. to continue providing an on-site Juvenile Court Liaison for 40 hours per week beginning October 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019; in the amount of \$58,905.00 annually.

MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF NORTH CENTRAL ALABAMA, INC. and LIMESTONE COUNTY, BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SERVICE AGREEMENT

The Mental Health Center of North Central Alabama, through the auspices of its outpatient treatment facility in Limestone County, the Athens-Limestone Counseling Center, herein after referred to as ALCC, and the Limestone County, Board of County Commissioners, herein after referred to as Commission, do enter into an agreement for ALCC to continue providing Commission with a Juvenile Court Liaison (JCL) with the following characteristics:

- 1. This service agreement will go into effect October 1, 2018 and will continue through September 30, 2019.
- 2. Beginning October 1, 2018 ALCC will continue to provide Commission with an onsite Juvenile Court Liaison. JCL will provide services for the District Court of Limestone County or as specified by Commission.
- 3. ALCC JCL will provide on-site services for forty (40) hours per week during the normal Monday through Friday work schedule. Work schedule will be mutually agreed upon between ALCC and Commission.
- 4. ALCC JCL services will include, but are not limited to: mental health assessments; mental health evaluations; crisis counseling and interventions; individual, group and family counseling; consultation to District Court staff, adolescent anger management classes and other related services as needed. Prioritization of JCL services will remain a function of Chief District Judge of Limestone County.
- 5. Commission agrees to provide in-kind contributions of office space and furniture as well as reasonable access to a phone, internet access, copying machine, fax and the like in order for the JCL to carry out their job duties.

- 6. Commission and the District Court of Limestone County will abide and follow all state and federal requirements for sharing client protected health information
- 7. Rates for stated JCL services will be fifty-eight thousand, nine hundred and five dollars (\$58,905) annually or four thousand, nine-hundred and nine dollars (\$4,909) per month. Method of invoicing will remain consistent with established JCL invoicing practices.

Monthly payments for JCL services are to be sent to:

Mental Health Center of North Central Alabama, Inc. Attention: Melanie Reid, CFO 1316 Somerville Road, SE, Suite 1 Decatur, Alabama 35601-4317 (256) 260-7342 / (256) 355-6092 fax / <u>Mreid@mhcnca.org</u>

This service agreement shall be in effect upon completed signatures. Either party may dissolve this agreement by providing thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.

Mark Yarbrough, Chairman Limestone County, Board of County Commissioners Lisa S. Coleman, Executive Director Mental Health Center of North Central Alabama, Inc.

Date

Date

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner, aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Ben Harrison to approve the following reimbursable Agreement with Athens Electric Department for utility relocate on Old Highway 20 over a slough of Limestone Creek ERPR-9010(955).

REIMBURSABLE AGREEMENT FOR RELOCATION OF UTILITY FACILITIES ON PRIVATE OR PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

		PROJECT N	UMBER ERPR-9010(955)
	Private Right-of-Way	COUNTY N	UMBER LCP42-166-16
Х	Public Right-of-Way	COUNTY	Limestone

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into by and between the County of Limestone acting by and through its County Commission, hereinafter referred to as the COUNTY, and ATHENS UTILITIES. ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT hereinafter referred to as the UTILITY.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the COUNTY proposes a project of certain highway improvements in Limestone County, Alabama, said project being designated as Project No. ERPR4010(955) and consisting approximately of the following: Bridge replacement on Old Highway 20 (CR-12) over a slough of Limestone Creek, and

WHEREAS, the UTILITY is the owner of certain facilities located on private or public right-of-way, as applicable, at places where they will interfere with the construction of said project unless said facilities are relocated; and

WHEREAS, the COUNTY has determined that the relocation of the facilities hereinafter referred to is necessitated by the construction of said project and has requested or ordered, as applicable, the UTILITY to relocate same; and

WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation will use Federal funds allocated to the County, if available, that are provided to it by the Federal Highway Administration pursuant to 23 CFR 645 to reimburse the County's expenses incurred in adjusting the utilities facilities;

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The UTILITY will relocate its facilities presently located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project in accordance with the UTILITY'S plans and specifications as approved by the COUNTY, so as to occasion the least possible interference with the progress of the project. The UTILITY'S plans, specifications and estimate of relocation cost arc transmitted herewith and made a part hereof by reference.

2. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the latest edition of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation Utility Manual, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such Utility Manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation at the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof by reference.

3. The UTILITY will conform to the provisions of the Federal Highway Administration Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), latest edition, as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto, for both installation and maintenance of such facilities. Such manual is of record within the Alabama Department of Transportation al the execution of this Agreement and is hereby made a part hereof reference.

4. Code of Federal Regulations 23 CFR 645 is hereby made a part hereof by reference and will be conformed to by the UTILITY as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto.

5. The UTILITY will observe and comply with the provisions of all Federal, State and Municipal laws and regulations as the provisions thereof are applicable hereto in the performance of work hereunder, including the Clean Water Act of 1987, the Alabama Nonpoint

Source Management Program of 1989, and the regulations of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Alabama Department of Environmental Management (ADEM). The UTILITY will procure and pay for all licenses and permits that are necessary for its performance of the work.

- 6. The UTILITY will perform the work of relocation:
 - (a) \underline{X} by UTILITY'S own forces
 - (b) _____ by contract let by the UTILITY
 - (c) _____ by an existing written continuing contract where the work is regularly performed for the UTILITY
 - (d) _____ by combination of the preceding (as shown in detail on the estimate).

7. The detailed relocation cost estimate will be itemized and attached to this agreement. With respect to facilities located on the UTILITY'S private right-of-way, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for the actual cost of relocation, as may be adjusted below. With respect to facilities located on public right-of-way, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for all or part of the actual cost of relocation as required by the laws of Alabama, as may be adjusted below.

- a. The STATE'S share of the engineering charges shall be limited to the "inkind" work only.
- b. The total actual cost of relocation, including Engineering, whether the facilities are on private or public right-of-way, shall be adjusted for betterment, if any, as defined and provided for in 23 CFR 645 above noted. Excluding betterment costs, the total estimated cost of relocation. including Engineering, is \$26,783.05. The total estimated cost including betterment is \$26,783.05.
- c. If an adjustment for betterment is applicable, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for 100 percent of the actual cost of relocation and the remaining 0 percent thereof shall be for the account of the UTILITY for betterment. If there are changes during construction and/or the actual construction cost percentage becomes substantially different from the construction estimate, the COUNTY reserves the right to recalculate the percentages at any time.

8. The UTILITY will keep accurate and true records of all expenditures made by it in the process of such relocation. Records will be kept in accordance with 23 CFR 645 above noted, or in accordance with Part 30 and 31, Federal Acquisition Regulations, or in accordance with accounting practices acceptable to the STATE.

9. The UTILITY will, during the progress of the work and for three years from the date final payment is made, make its records available during normal working hours for examination and audit by representatives of the STATE and of the Federal Highway

Administration to verify amounts and items covered in the reimbursement for relocation of facilities covered herein. Said records will be available for examination at

Athens Utilities-Electric Department P.O. Box 1089, 1806 Wilkinson St. Athens, AL 35612

10. The UTILITY will, within six (6) months following completion of the relocation, furnish the COUNTY such papers, records, supporting documents and invoices as may be required by the State showing the cost of said relocation. The UTILITY will furnish the COUNTY a copy of its "as built" plans for the STATE'S records.

11. Upon receipt of such documents and accounts as may be required by the preceding paragraph and upon completion and acceptance of such verification as the COUNTY may deem necessary, the COUNTY will reimburse the UTILITY for the actual cost of such relocation as verified by the COUNTY. In the event the actual verified cost, as accepted, exceeds the estimated cost, the COUNTY may require a Supplemental Agreement to be executed between the parties prior to reimbursement of any amount in excess of the estimated cost.

12. Paragraphs numbered 13 through 17 set forth below are applicable to this Agreement only if some or all of the UTILITY facilities to be relocated hereunder are located on private right-of-way of the UTILITY; otherwise, such paragraphs are considered inapplicable to this Agreement and null and void.

13. Where the UTILITY has a compensable property interest in its existing location (herein referred to as private right-of-way) by reason of holding the fee, an easement or other property interest, evidence of such compensable property interest will be submitted to the COUNTY by the UTILITY for review and approval.

14. If the UTILITY is required to move all of its facilities from a portion of its private right-of-way, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the UTILITY will convey to the COUNTY by Quitclaim Deed the portion of its private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.

15. In the event the UTILITY is not required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right-of-way, the following provisions shall apply:

- a. To the extent the UTILITY has the right to so agree the COUNTY will have the right to construct, operate and maintain a highway over and along the portion of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way located within the right-ofway limits of the above referenced project.
- b. The subordination of the UTILITYS private right-of-way to the right of the COUNTY to construct, operate, and maintain said highway will be effective

and operative only to such air, surface and sub-surface rights as may reasonably be required and are necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of said highway, and to enable the COUNTY to control access to the highway where such control is established; otherwise this subordination agreement will in no wise affect and impair the rights of the UTILITY, its successors and assigns, in or to its private right-of-way, including but not limited to the right to install additional facilities over, under and across the highway; provided, however, that any installation of additional facilities will be subject to the STATE'S responsibility and right to make prior determination that any such additional facilities are located so as not to impair the highway or any planned highway improvement and so as not to interfere with the free and safe flow of traffic thereon.

c. It is mutually understood that the terms of this Agreement do not subordinate, affect or impair the rights of the UTILITY for reimbursement of the cost of such future relocation as may be required and necessitated by highway construction at some future date, as fully as if no subordination existed; however, such relocation will be in accordance with an additional agreement to be entered into at that time between the UTILITY and the COUNTY.

16. If the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right-of-way to a new location on the same private right-of-way, the following provisions shall apply:

- a. To the extent the UTILITY has the right to so agree, upon completion of the relocation provided for herein, the COUNTY will have the right to construct, operate and maintain a highway over and along the portion of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way located within the right-of-way limits of the above referenced project.
- b. The subordination of the UTILITY'S private right-of-way to the right of the COUNTY to construct, operate and maintain said highway will be effective and operative only to such air, surface and sub-surface rights as may reasonably be required and are necessary for the construction, operation and maintenance of said highway, and to enable the COUNTY to control access to the highway where such control is established; otherwise this subordination agreement will in no wise affect and impair the rights of the UTILITY, its successors and assigns, in or to its private right-of-way, including but not limited to the right to install additional facilities over, under and across the highway; provided, however, that any installation of additional facilities will be subject to the COUNTY'S responsibility and right to make prior determination that any such additional facilities are located so as not to impair the highway or any planned highway

improvement and so as not to interfere with the free and safe flow of traffic thereon.

C. It is mutually understood that the terms of this Agreement do not subordinate, affect or impair the rights of the UTILITY for reimbursement of the cost of such future relocation as may be required and necessitated by highway construction at some future date, as fully as if no subordination existed; however, such relocation will be in accordance with an additional agreement to be entered into at that time between the UTILITY and the COUNTY.

17. If the UTILITY is required to relocate any of its facilities which are located on its private right-of-way to a new location on public right-of-way or if any such facilities ate to be retained in place within the public right-of-way due to this project, the following provisions will apply

- a. Tic cost of relocation will include reimbursement for acquisition of right-ofway by the UTILITY to place necessary guy wires and anchors on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way and the rights to cut, trim and remove, initially and from time to time as necessary, trees on private lands adjacent to the highway right-of-way which might then or thereafter endanger the facilities of the UTILITY.
- b. Reimbursement for future relocation of the UTILITY'S facilities will be in accordance with State laws in effect at the time such relocation is made; provided, however, the UTILITY will be reimbursed for the cost of any future relocation of the facilities, including the cost of acquisition of equivalent private right-of-way if such future relocation is outside the highway right-of-way and such relocation is required by the COUNTY, and provided that the prior relocation from private right-of-way to public right-of-way was without compensation to the UTILITY for its compensable property interest in its private right-of way.

18. The UTILITY will be obligated for the payment of damages occasioned to private property, public utilities or the general public, caused by the legal liability (in accordance with Alabama and/or Federal law) of the UTILITY, its agents, servants, employees or facilities.

19. The UTILITY will have a copy of this Agreement on the project site at all times while work is being performed under this Agreement.

20. Nothing contained in this Agreement, or in its execution, shall be construed to alter or affect the title of the COUNTY to the public right-of-way nor to increase, decrease or modify in any way the rights of the UTILITY provided by law with respect to the construction, operation or maintenance of its facilities on the public right-of-way.

21. Paragraph 22 set forth below is applicable to this Agreement only if Federal appropriated funds are available or will be available in the project by which the relocation required by this Agreement is necessitated.

22. In the event any Federal Funds are utilized for this work, the following certification is made:

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- (1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- (2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instruction.
- (3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

23. In accordance with Title 23, U.S.C, Sec 313, Buy America, steel and iron materials, and products used on this utility relocation, shall comply with the Buy America requirements of 23 CFR 635.410. Minor items of foreign steel may be used if their cost is less than \$2,500, or one-tenth of one percent of the agreement amount, whichever is greater. Eligibility for reimbursement is subject to audit for compliance with the Buy America Requirement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective officers, officials or persons thereunto duly authorized, and this agreement is deemed to be dated and to be effective on the date hereinafter stated as the date of its approval by the County Transportation Engineer.

The County requests that (_____ 100% County funds; __X_Federal participation) be used for utility work in this agreement.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Ben Harrison, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Steve Turner, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Stanley Hill to approve the following budget revisions:

Department	Account Number	Title of Line Item	Amount
Courthouse	112-47751	Donations	-\$ 7,000.00
	112-35910	Budgetary Fund Balance	-\$20,000.00
	112-51002-231	Repair & Maintenance of Land	+\$27,000.00

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Jason Black, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Ben Harrison and seconded by Jason Black to reappoint Michelle Williamson to the Alabama Mountain Lakes Tourist Association Board of Directors, term will expire September 30, 2020.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Ben Harrison, aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Steve Turner, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Jason Black and seconded by Steve Turner to award the following bid proposals to the lowest responsible bidder meeting specifications as follows:

Proposal No.	ltem	Awarded to	Amount
2652	Appraisal Uniforms	Reject bid.	
	(Revenue Commission)	Did not meet	
	Oct. 1, 2018 – Sept. 30, 2019	bid specs.	
2653	Deputy Uniforms	Galls, Inc.	Men's Trousers \$32.50
	(Sheriff's Department)		Men's L/S Shirts \$45.10
	Aug. 8, 2018 – Aug. 7, 2019		Men's S/S Shirts \$41.00
2654	Printing Operations Fund Checks	R J Young, Inc.	\$733.20
	(County Commission)	-	

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Jason Black, aye; Steve Turner, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Jason Black to approve for two handcrafted benches, provided by Aidan Harm, Life Scout in Boy Scout Troop 236 of East Limestone, to be placed at the Limestone County Archives and the Limestone County Farmer's Market, in celebration of the City of Athens 200th birthday.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner, aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Steve Turner and seconded by Jason Black to approve to expand the existing cemetery at Pleasant Grove Church, 15439 Hastings Road, at the recommendation of the Limestone County Health Department.

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Steve Turner; aye; Jason Black, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; and Ben Harrison, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

MOTION was made by Ben Harrison and seconded by Stanley Hill to approve to sell the following on GovDeals:

Department	Item	Inventory #	Vin/Serial #
Council on Aging	1997 Dodge Intrepid	728	2B3HD46T8VH642180
Council on Aging	2007 Chevy Malibu	18943	1G1ZS68N87F179991
District 4	1996 Goosehead		C-5343
	Gooseneck Flatbed		

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Ben Harrison, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Jason Black, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

Commissioner Hill reported his district has been performing routine maintenance and are preparing to chip seal Bic Jock Road, Heron Drive, and Paris Lane.

Commissioners Turner, Black and Harrison gave an update on their recent Whitehouse tour and conference. They attended a private briefing, during which county leaders were able to talk with and hear from Kellyanne Conway, Counselor to President Donald Trump, about the opioid crisis; U.S. Department of Interior Secretary Ryan Zinke about the National Park System and our nation's energy dominance; and U.S. Attorney General Jeff Sessions about crime reduction.

Commissioner Harrison stated his district will be repairing base failures on Witty Mill Road.

MOTION was made by Ben Harrison and seconded by Stanley Hill to approve the following road projects in District 4.

Road Name	Length in miles	Width in feet	Note	Cost
Maples Circle	.8	16	Chip Seal	\$ 12,700
Barker Road	1.7	16	Chip Seal	\$ 27,500
Simpson Road	.3	14	Chip Seal	\$ 5,000
Norris Lane	.5	12	Chip Seal	\$ 6,000

The Chairman asked if there was any discussion. There was no discussion. The Administrator called the roll. Ben Harrison, aye; Stanley Hill, aye; Steve Turner, aye; and Jason Black, aye. Motion carries unanimously.

Recessed at 10:22 a.m. until 10:00 a.m. on Wednesday, August 15, 2018, at the Washington Street Courthouse Annex, 310 West Washington Street, Athens, Alabama.